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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

 
 
HAROLD M. HOFFMAN, individually 
and on behalf of those similarly situated,  
 
 Plaintiffs, 
 v. 
 
MUSHROOM WISDOM, INC., 
 
 Defendant. 

Civil Action No.  
Judge: 
 
     Document electronically filed 
 
MUSHROOM WISDOM INC.’S 
NOTICE OF REMOVAL 

 
 

DEFENDANT MUSHROOM WISDOM INC.’S NOTICE OF REMOVAL 
 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT Defendant Mushroom Wisdom, Inc. 

(“Mushroom Wisdom”), located at 1 Madison St., East Rutherford, NJ, 07073, by 

and through its undersigned counsel, hereby removes this action, filed by Harold 

M. Hoffman, located at 240 Grand Avenue, Englewood, NJ 07631, from the 

Superior Court of New Jersey, Bergen County - Law Division, to the United States 

District Court for the District of New Jersey in accordance with 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 
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1332(d), 1441, 1446, and 1453.  In support of this Notice of Removal, Mushroom 

Wisdom states as follows:   

 
STATE COURT ACTION 

 
1. On or about January 19, 2016, plaintiff Harold M. Hoffman 

(“Hoffman”) filed in the Superior Court of New Jersey, Law Division, Bergen 

County, a purported class action complaint entitled Harold M. Hoffman, 

individually and on behalf of all other similarly situated v. Mushroom Wisdom, 

Inc., Docket No. Ber-L-608-16 (Bergen Cnty Sup. Ct. N.J.) (“Complaint”).  On 

January 24, 2016, Hoffman served that Complaint, the Summons, and the Civil 

Case Information Statement on Mushroom Wisdom, Inc.’s owner, Mike Shirota. 

2. In accord with 28 U.S.C. § 1446(b), this Notice of Removal is filed 

within thirty days after Mushroom Wisdom first received a copy of the Complaint, 

which is the initial pleading setting forth the claim for relief upon which such 

action  or proceeding is based. 

3. Attached as Exhibit A is a true and complete copy of all documents 

referenced herein Paragraph 1, said documents constituting the only process, 

pleading, or orders received by Mushroom Wisdom in this action. 

4. The Complaint alleges that Mushroom Wisdom violated the New 

Jersey Consumer Fraud Act, N.J.S.A. 56:8-1, et seq. (“CFA”) in connection with 

the marketing, labeling, and advertisement of a dietary supplement known as 
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Amyloban3399 (“Amyloban”).   

5. Hoffman’s Complaint alleges that Mushroom Wisdom violated the 

CFA because Mushroom Wisdom’s labeling violated applicable FDA statutes and 

regulations.  In particular, the Complaint alleges that Mushroom Wisdom violated 

the CFA through violations of the federal law, to wit, by misbranding the product 

under 21 U.S.C. § 352(f)(1), and “market[ing] in the U.S. without prior approval 

from the FDA as described in section 505(a) of the FFDC Act [21 U.S.C. § 

355(a)].”  See Complaint at ¶¶ 16–17; see also id. at ¶ 35 (“Defendant marketed 

and sold Amyloban—and consumers purchased it—on the premise that the product 

was lawfully sold to deliver specific benefit”). 

6. Mushroom Wisdom removes this action because there is (a) original 

“federal question” jurisdiction in accordance with 28 U.S.C. § 1331, as Plaintiff’s 

claims arise under the laws of the United States, and (b) because there is diversity 

jurisdiction under the Class Action Fairness Act of 2005 (“CAFA”), 28 U.S.C. § 

1332(d). 

FEDERAL QUESTION JURISDICTION 

7. Federal question jurisdiction is appropriate where “a state-law claim 

necessarily raise[s] a stated federal issue, actually disputed and substantial, which 

federal forum may entertain without disturbing any congressionally approved 

balance of federal and state judicial responsibilities.”  Grable & Sons Metal 
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Products, Inc. v. Darune Eng’g & Mfg., 545 U.S. 308, 314 (2005).  Hoffman 

asserts a state law consumer fraud claim that is entirely dependent on an 

interpretation of federal law.  Hoffman’s purported state law claim necessarily 

implicates and arises under federal law.  See, e.g., Complaint, at 2 (“Defendant 

makes these claims that are … in violation of federal law…”); id. at 3 

(“Defendant’s claims … were untrue and violative of federal law as Defendant’s 

Amyloban has not been approved by the United States Food & Drug 

Administration”); id. at ¶ 7 (“Defendant violates explicit FDA rules and 

guidelines”); id. at ¶ 8 (“Defendant further violates explicit FDA rules and 

guidelines”); id. at ¶ 9 (same); id. at ¶ 10 (same); id. at ¶ 11 (same); id. at ¶ 12 

(same); id. at ¶¶ 15-17 (citing purported violations of federal law); id. at ¶ 20 

(summarizing allegations that are predicated on federal law:  “Plaintiff brings this 

suit to recover funds taken by Defendant as a consequence of its deception of 

nationwide consumers through marketing and sale of an illegal product”); id. at ¶ 

28 (“The product delivered by Defendant to plaintiff and members of the putative 

class was misrepresented and sold in violation of governing federal law”); id. at ¶ 

35 (claiming a “causal relationship between the Defendant’s misrepresentations of 

lawful efficacy and the loss suffered by plaintiff”). 

8. Plaintiff advances a class action claim and seeks class certification.  

See Complaint at ¶ 37.  One of the “common questions of law and fact” that 
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purportedly affects all members of the class includes the following issue, which is 

the crux of the Plaintiff’s Complaint:  “Whether Defendant marketed Amyloban in 

violation of federal law.”  Id. at ¶ 37(b). 

9. The marketing, labeling, and advertisement of Amyloban is 

comprehensively regulated by the FDCA and regulations promulgated thereunder.  

The Complaint alleges that Mushroom Wisdom violated the CFA solely because 

Amyloban’s marketing, labeling, and advertisement does not comport with the 

FDCA and regulations promulgated thereunder.     

10. The Supreme Court has repeatedly held that for federal jurisdiction a 

case “arises under” federal law if resolution of the claim requires the Court to 

evaluate significant federal issues, even if the plaintiff’s claim technically proceeds 

under a state law theory.  Grable, 545 U.S. at 312 (citing Hopkins v. Walker, 244 

U.S. 486, 490–91 (1917)).  “The doctrine captures the commonsense notion that a 

federal court ought to be able to hear claims recognized under state law that 

nonetheless turn on substantial questions of federal law, and thus justify resort to 

the experience, solicitude, and hope of uniformity that a federal forum offers on 

federal issues.”  Id.   

11. Here the Complaint: alleges that Mushroom Wisdom’s claims “are in 

violation of federal law”; cites to the FDCA as evidence that Mushroom Wisdom 

violates federal law; repeatedly alleges that Mushroom Wisdom “violates explicit 
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FDA rules;” alleges that Mushroom Wisdom violates the FDCA; and continuously 

cites directly to the FDCA as the only evidence that Mushroom Wisdom has 

allegedly violated the CFA.  See Complaint at pp. 2–7.  Indeed, the Complaint 

alleges that “Plaintiff and members of the putative class paid hard earned money 

and received from Defendant, in exchange, a product which was marketed in 

violation of governing federal law.”  See Complaint at pp. 10–11 (emphasis 

added).  A significant and central issue in this case will therefore concern whether 

Mushroom Wisdom’s labeling and marketing violated federal law, rendering 

removal appropriate.  See DeAngelo-Shuayto v. Organon USA Inc., 2007 WL 

4365311, at *8 (D.N.J. Dec. 12, 2007) (explaining that federal question jurisdiction 

is appropriate where the merits of the New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act depend 

solely on construction of federal law).   

REMOVAL UNDER THE CLASS ACTION FAIRNESS ACT (“CAFA”) 

12. This matter is subject to removal under the CAFA, 28 U.S.C. § 

1332(d). 

13. The CAFA, with limited exceptions, confers federal jurisdiction over 

any class action lawsuit if the following elements are satisfied:  (i) the claims of all 

plaintiffs, aggregated together, exceed $5 million, and (ii) at least one plaintiff is 

diverse from at least one defendant.  28 U.S.C. §§ 1332(d)(2), 1332(d)(6). 

14. “Class action” is defined in 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(1)(B) as any action 
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filed pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. Proc. 23 or any analogous state rule or statute.  

Section 1332(d)(8) states that “[t]his subsection shall apply to any class action 

before or after the entry of a class certification order by the court with respect to 

that action.” 

15. Here the class action Complaint “demands judgment against the 

Defendant for treble damages together with pre-judgment and post-judgment 

interest, fees, costs, attorney’s fees, civil penalties mandated by N.J.S.A. 56:8-19, 

and any other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper.”  The claims of 

all plaintiffs to this action (including the nationwide class), aggregated together, 

exceed $5 million.  See Declaration of Donna Noonan, attached hereto as Exhibit 

B.   

16. The Complaint states that “[t]he class is comprised of consumers 

throughout the United States.”  At least one member of the proposed class is a 

citizen of a state different from Mushroom Wisdom.  In fact, the substantial 

majority of all putative class plaintiffs reside in different states across the country.  

Only a small minority of Mushroom Wisdom’s sales are to New Jersey consumers.  

Accordingly, diversity under the CAFA exists.  See 28 U.S.C.§ 1332(d). 
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CONCLUSION 

 Mushroom Wisdom requests that this Court assume jurisdiction over the 

entire action herein as provided by law. 

 
DATED:  February 12, 2016 

      Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
 

By:   s/ Richard D. Kraus     
  Richard D. Kraus, Esq. (RK4561) 

SBN 033241983 
rdkraus@earthlink.net 
One University Plaza, Suite 14 

   Hackensack, NJ 07601  
P: (201) 487-2870 

      F: (201) 343-8517 

      Peter A. Arhangelsky, Esq. (PA0667) 1 
      Emord & Associates, P.C.  
      3210 S. Gilbert Road, Suite 4  
      Chandler, AZ 85286   
      Phone: (602) 388-8899   
      Fax: (602) 393-4361   

     E-mail: parhangelsky@emord.com  
 

Attorneys for Defendant Mushroom Wisdom 

                                                 
1 Defendant’s out-of-state counsel intend to promptly move for pro hac vice admission 

pursuant to Local Rule 101.1(c). 
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HAROLD M . HOFFMAN, ESQ. 

240 GRAND A VENUE 

ENGLEWOOD, NJ 07631 

(201) 569-0086 
HOFFMAN.ESQ@VERJZON.NET 

ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF AND THE PUTATNE CLASS 

HAROLD M. HOFFMAN, individually and on 
behalf of those similarly situated, 

Plaintiff, 

-against-

MUSHROOM WISDOM, INC., 

Defendant. 

SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY 
BERGEN COUNTY - LAW DIVISION 

DOCKET NO.: BER-L-608-16 

CIVIL ACTION 

SUMMONS 

From the State of New Jersey To the Defeodant(s) named above: 

MUSHROOM WISDOM, INC. 

The plaintiff, named above, has filed a lawsuit against you in the Superior Court of New Jersey. The 
Complaint attached to this summons states the basis for this lawsuit. If you dispute this complaint, you or your 
attorney must file a wri tten answer or motion and proof of service with the deputy clerk of the Superior Court in the 
county listed above within 35 days from the date you received this summons, not counting the date you received it. 
(The address of each deputy clerk of the Superior Court is provided). ti the complaint is one in foreclosure, then you 
must file your written answer or motion and proof of service with the Clerk of the Superior Court, Hughes Justice 
Complex, CN-971, Trenton, NJ 08625. A $200 filing fee, payable to the Clerk of the Superior Court, and a completed 
Case Information Statement (available from the deputy clerk of the Superior Court) must accompany your answer or 
motion when it is filed. You must also send a copy of your answer or motion to plaintiffs attorney whose name and 
address appear above, or to plaintiff if no attorney is named above. A telephone caJI will not protect your rights; you 
must file and serve a written answer or motion (with fee and completed Case Information Statement) if you want 
the court to hear your defense. 

If you do not file and serve a written answer o.r motion within 35 days, the court may enter a judgment 
against you for the relief plaintiff demands, p lus interest and costs of suit. lf judgment is entered against you, the 
Sheriff may seize your money, wages or property to pay all or part of the judgment. 

If you cannot afford an attorney, you may call the Legal Services office in the coun ty where you live. A list 
of these offices is provided. If you do not have an attorney and are not eligible for free legal assistance, you may 
obtain a referral to an attorney by calling one of the Lawyer Referral Services. A list of these numbers is also 
provided. 

/SI Michelle M. Smith 
Michelle M . Smith, Superior Court Clerk 

Dated: Jan uary 22, 2016 

Name of Defendant to be Served: MUSHROOM WlSDOM, INC. 

Address of Defendant to be Served: cto Masaki Shirota, Reg. Agent, 6 Aster Ct., Paramus, NJ 
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HAROLD M. HOFFMAN, ESQ. 

240 GRAND AVENUE 

ENGLEWOOD, NJ 07631 

(201) 569-0086 
HOFFMAN.ESO@VERJZON.NET 

ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF AND THE PUTATIVE CLASS 

SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY 
BERGEN COUNTY - LAW DIVISION 

HAROLD M. HOFFMAN, individually and on 
behalf of those similarly situated, DOCKET NO.: BER-L-608-16 

Plaintiff, 

-against-

MUSHROOM WISDOM, INC., 

Defendant. 

OVILACTION 

COMPLAINT AND JURY 
DEMAND IN CLASS ACTION 

OVERVIEW 

By this civil action, Plaintiff brings claims on his own behalf and on behalf of those 

similarly situated (the "Gass"), to redress nationwide injury inflicted on the United States 

consumer public. As detailed below, Defendant, on a nationwide basis, advertised, 

promoted, marketed, distributed and sold a dietary supplement in tablet form, known as 

Amy lo ban 3399 (" Amyloban"), as effective in the cure, mitigation, treatment, or prevention 

of Brain Disease (including Alzheimer's Disease). 

1 
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As alleged below, Defendant manufactures, advertises, promotes, markets, 

distributes and sells Amyloban coupled with the highly specific claim that it is an effective 

therapy for the prevention of Brain Disease. Indeed, it claims that Amyloban delivers a 

"Breakthrough" in "Brain Function." 

Specifically, the Amyloban product label as well as Defendant's website 

[ www.mushroom wisdom.com] prominently claim and represent that Amyloban: 

• Inhibits the formation of Amyloid, a toxic peptide in brain cells. Amyloid has 

been shown to be toxic to several relevant cell types, including neurons, cerebrovascular 

smooth muscle cells, and endothelial cells. Recent medical research suggests that 

amyloid build-up in the brain may contribute to Alzheimer's Disease. 

• Contains a constituent ingredient "that supports healthy nerves and brain" and 

another constituent ingredient that stimulates "the production of Nerve Growth Factor 

("NGF") in the brain." NGF is a neuropeptide primarily involved in the regulation of 

growth, maintenance, proliferation, and survival of certain neurons, which are core 

components of the brain and spinal cord. 

Defendant makes these claims and promises that are not only disingenuous and 

unsubstantiated, they are in violation of federal law which prohibits the sale of all 

2 
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unapproved and uncleared products for the diagnosis, mitigation, prevention, 

treatment, or cure of any disease, including Brain Disease. Dietary supplements may 

not be labeled with therapeutic claims suggesting that they are intended for use in the 

cure, mitigation, treatment, or prevention of disease, as thjs causes them, by operation 

of federal law, to be considered as unapproved drugs [21 U.S.C. § 321(g)(l)(B)]. 

Defendant's claims and promises with respect to the purported efficacy and 

legality of its product, Arnyloban, were calcuJated and designed to lead Plaintiff and 

others similarly situated to believe that Amyloban had the capacity to mitigate, prevent, 

treat or cure Brain Disease. Defendant's claims and promises were both untrue and 

violative of federal law as Defendant's Amyloban has not been approved by the United 

States Food & Drug Administration ("FDA") for its claimed and intended purpose. 

The putative class comprises all nationwide purchasers of Amyloban who 

purchased the product during the six year period preceding the filing of this suit. 

1. At all times relevant, Plaintiff Harold M. Hoffman had a place of residence 

in the State of New Jersey, County of Bergen. Plaintiff was exposed to and read, saw 

and/or heard Defendant's labeling, advertising and marketing claims and promises with 

respect to Arnyloban, and thereafter purchased the product at a health food store called 

Aylward's in Englewood, New Jersey, in reliance upon such labeling, advertising and 
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marketing claims and promises, in December of 2015, for a purchase price of $89.99. 

2. At all relevant times, Defendant MUSHROOM WISDOM, INC., was a 

corporation organized and existing pursuant to the laws of the State of Delaware, with a 

principal place of business located in East Rutherford, New Jersey. 

3. Defendant advertised, marketed, distributed and sold Amyloban in commerce 

throughout the United States. 

4. At all relevant times, plaintiff was and is a consumer, with a residence in the 

State of New Jersey, County of Bergen. 

5. At all relevant times, Defendant constituted a "person" as defined in the New 

Jersey Consumer Fraud Act, N.].S.A. 56:8-l(d). 

6. For the six-year period preceding the filing of this action, Defendant, through 

retail and/or other distribution, advertised, promoted, offered, labeled, and sold its 

products to consumers, including Amyloban, a purported dietary supplement in tablet 

form, as able and intended to mitigate, prevent, treat or cure Brain Disease, including 

Alzheimer's Disease. 

7. Indeed, Defendant violates explicit FDA rules and guidelines by making a 

claim of efficacy, i.e., intended to mitigate, prevent, treat or cure Brain Disease, disguised 

4 
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as a product name. Here, Defendant sells and labels its product as Amyloban, a poorly 

concealed attempt to communicate that Amyloban, is capable of banning, relieving, 

stopping, addressing, impacting, mitigating, preventing, treating or curing Brain Disease 

caused by the accumu]ation of Amyloids, a toxic peptide in brain cells. 

8. Defendant further violates explicit FDA rules and guidelines by suggesting, 

in its advertising, on its website and on the product label, that Amyloban has an effect on 

a specific disease, Brain Disease, by purportedly banning I eliminating the accumulation of 

Amyloids, a toxic peptide in brain cells. 

9. Defendant further violates explicit FDA rules and guidelines by claiming, in 

its advertising, on its website and on the product label, that Amyloban relieves and/or 

mitigates the alleged dangers of Amyloid accumulation in the brain. 

10. Moreover, Defendant further violates explicit FDA rules and guidelines by 

suggesting that its product and/or product ingredients belong to a particular class of 

products intended to cure, treat, prevent, or mitigate Brain Disease. 

11. Defendant further violates explicit FDA rules and guidelines, as noted, by 

claiming that its product, Amyloban, inhibits the formation of Amyloid, a toxic peptide in 

brain cells. Amyloid has been shown to be toxic to several relevant cell types, including 

5 
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neurons, cerebrovascular smooth muscle cells, and endothelial cells. Recent medical 

research suggests that amyloid build-up in the brain may contribute to Alzheimer's Disease. 

12. Defendant further violates explicit FDA rules and guidelines, as noted, by 

claiming , on its product label, that Amyloid contains a constituent ingredient "that 

supports healthy nerves and brain" and another constituent ingredient that stimulates "the 

production of Nerve Growth Factor ("NGF") in the brain." NGF is a neuropeptide 

primarily involved in the regulation of growth, maintenance, proliferation, and survival of 

certain neurons, which are core components of the brain and spinal cord. 

13. Based on Defendant's illicit marketing efforts and product labeling, including 

the foregoing unlawful claims, Defendant is believed to have sold substantial quantities of 

Amyloban, a product that purportedly contains a particular mushroom extract, to 

consumers throughout the nation. 

14. Defendant makes the foregoing illicit claims of product efficacy directly on 

the product label and/or Defendant's website, which tout, claim and offer Amyloban as 

intended to mitigate, prevent, treat or cure Brain Disease including Alzheimer's Disease. 

15. Amyloban, which is labeled as a dietary supplement, has not been approved 

or cleared by the FDA for use in the mitigation, prevention, treatment, or cure of Brain 

6 
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Disease. Thus, the marketing of Amyloban violates the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic 

Act ("FFDC Act), 21U.S.C.§§331, 352, in that it is an unapproved and uncleared product 

for the diagnosis, mitigation, prevention, treatment, or cure of a disease. 

16. Amyloban is not recognized as safe and effective for the treatment of Brain 

Disease and thus it constitutes a "new drug" under section 201(p) of the FFDC Act [21 

U.S.C. § 321(p)]. New drugs may not be legally marketed in the U.S. without prior 

approval from the FDA as described in section SOS( a) of the FFDC Act r11 U.S.C. § 355(a)]. 

The FDA approves a new drug on the basis of scientific data submitted by a drug sponsor 

to demonstrate that the drug is safe and effective. Defendant has made no such submission 

to the FDA. 

17. Furthermore, Amyloban is offered for conditions that are not amenable to 

self-diagnosis and treatment by individuals who are not medical practitioners; therefore, 

adequate directions for use cannot be written so that a layperson can use Amyloban safely 

for its intended purposes. Thus, Amyloban is misbranded within the meaning of section 

502(f)(l) of the FFDC Act [21U.S.C.§352(f)(l)], in that the labeling fails to bear adequate 

directions for use. The introduction of a misbranded drug into interstate commerce is a 

violation of section 301(a) of the FFDC Act (21U.S.C.§331(a)]. 

18. The marketing and sale of unapproved or uncleared products to treat Brain 
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Disease, such as Amyloban, is a potentially significant threat to the public health. 

19. Defendant's blatant misrepresentations and false claims regarding the 

legality and efficacy of Amyloban were designed to and did lead Plaintiff and others 

similarly situated to believe that Amyloban was being lawfully sold and that it was 

effective, and conformed to the requirements of federal law regulating the marketing of 

products claiming to treat and/or prevent Brain Disease. Plaintiff and members of the Class 

relied on Defendant's misrepresentations and would not have purchased and/or paid a 

purchase price for the product but for Defendant's false claims and misrepresentations. As 

a result, Defendant has wrongfully taken substantial sums from hard-working U.S. 

consumers. 

20. Plaintiff brings this suit to recover funds taken by Defendant as a consequence 

of its deception of nationwide consumers through marketing and sale of an illegal product. 

21. The affirmative claims, promises and representations made by Defendant in 

connection with the marketing, advertisement and sale of Amyloban, as aforesaid, are false 

and violative of federaJ law. 

22. Plaintiff and members of the putative class are purchasers of Amyloban and, 

prior to purchasing the product, saw, read and/or heard Defendant's advertisements, 
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product labeling, promises, claims and representations, as aforesaid. 

23. Plaintiff and members of the class, prior to purchasing the product, saw, read 

and/or heard Defendant's promises, product labeling, claims and representations as 

aforesaid, and made an out of pocket payment to Defendant in response thereto and in 

reliance thereon. 

24. The very purpose of the New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act is to protect 

consumers, such as the putative class members at bar, from being victimized by false and/or 

illegal promises and claims with respect to product efficacy, benefit and legality. 

25. In truth and fact, Defendant misrepresented the efficacy, legality and benefit 

of its product. Plaintiff and members of the class paid for a product that Defendant 

affirmatively and specifically represented to be lawful and effective. 

26. Here, consumers, including plaintiff, made purchasing decisions and did, in 

fact, make purchases from Defendant based upon Defendant's specific claims and 

representations of product efficacy, legality and benefit for its claimed purpose. 

27. Defendant has affirmatively misrepresented, misbranded and mislabeled its 

product. 

28. The affirmative promises and representations made by Defendant - both in 
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product labeling and in marketing advertisements and representations- in connection with 

Amyloban are fa)se, illegal and misleading. Plaintiff and members of the class were entitled 

to trust the Defendant's labeling and marketing representations and advertisements with 

respect to the product. The product delivered by Defendant to plaintiff and members of 

the putative class was misrepresented and sold in violation of governing federal law. 

29. Defendant's advertisements, promises and representations concerning 

Amyloban are illegal, false and constitute a deception; a misrepresentation; an 

unconscionable trade practice; a sharp and deceitful marketplace practice, and are a false 

promise. 

30. Defendant's advertisements, promises and representations concerning 

Amyloban result in nationwide consumers who purchased it, being subjected to 

misrepresentation, false promise, fraud, deceit, trickery and false and deceptive advertising. 

31. Defendant has made affirmative misrepresentations in connection with the 

sale, marketing and/or advertisement of its product, Amyloban. 

32. Plaintiff and members of the putative class suffered ascertainable loss in the 

form of actual out of pocket payment and expenditure, as aforesaid, as a result of 

Defendants' unlawful conduct as aforesaid. Plaintiff and members of the putative class 
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paid hard earned money and received from Defendant, in exchange, a product which was 

marketed in violation of governing federal Jaw. Indeed, there was a substantial difference 

between the price ($89.99) paid by conswners, including plaintiff, for the Defendant's 

product, and the represented value of the product. 

33. Here, plaintiff and members of the class suffered ascertainable loss when they 

received, for their money, an illegal product less than, and different from, the product 

promised by Defendant. The Defendant's product failed to measure up to the consumers' 

reasonable expectations based on the representations made by Defendant. Thus, 

purchasers of said product were injured and suffered loss. 

34. For their money, plaintiff and members of the class received something less 

than, and different from, what they reasonably expected in view of Defendant's 

representations. As a result, they suffered ascertainable loss. 

35. Defendant marketed and sold Amyloban - and consumers purchased it - on 

the premise that the product was lawfully sold to deliver specified benefit. Thus, there is 

a causal relationship between the Defendant's misrepresentations of lawful efficacy and the 

loss suffered by plaintiff and class members. 

11 

Case 2:16-cv-00768-WJM-MF   Document 1-1   Filed 02/12/16   Page 14 of 23 PageID: 22



CLASS ALLEGATIONS 

36. Plaintiff brings this suit as a class action individually and in behalf of others 

similarly situated pursuant to New Jersey Court Rule 4:32. Subject to additional information 

obtained through further investigation and/or discovery, the definition of the Class may be 

expanded or narrowed. The proposed Class consists of all nationwide purchasers of 

Amyloban during the six year period preceding the filing of this suit. 

37. lhis action has been brought and may properly be maintained as a class 

action pursuant to New Jersey Court Rule 4:32. 

Numerosity: The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members 

is impracticable. The Class is comprised of consumers throughout the United States. 

Commonality: Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the 

Class. These common questions predominate over the questions affecting only individual 

Class members, and include: 

a. Whether Defendant made affirmative misrepresentations in violation of the 
New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act; 

b. Whether Defendant marketed Amyloban in violation of federal law; and, 

c. The appropriate measure of damages sustained by the Plaintiff and/or other 
members of the Class. 
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Typicality: Plaintiff's claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Oass as 

all members of the Class are similarly affected by Defendants' wrongful conduct. Plaintiff, 

like other members of the Gass, purchased Amyloban after exposure to the same 

misrepresentations and/or omissions in Defendants' advertising and received a product less 

than and different from the promised product. Plaintiff is advancing claims and legal 

theories typical to the Gass. 

Adequacy: Plaintiff's claims are made in a representative capacity on behalf of all 

members of the Class. Plaintiff has no interests antagonistic to the interests of the other 

members of the proposed Class and is subject to no unique defenses. 

32. Plaintiff is similarly situated in interest to all members of the proposed 

Gass and is committed to the vigorous prosecution of this action. Accordingly, Plaintiff 

is an adequate representative of the proposed Class and will fairly and adequately 

protect the interests of the Class. Should the Court require same as a condition to dass 

certification, Plaintiff is prepared to surrender the role of counsel for the putative da~ 

Alternatively, a suitable alternative class representative will be identified. 

33. This suit may be maintained as a class action because Defendant has acted, 

and/or have refused to act, on grounds generally applicable to the Class, thereby making 

final relief appropriate. 

13 

Case 2:16-cv-00768-WJM-MF   Document 1-1   Filed 02/12/16   Page 16 of 23 PageID: 24



34. Plaintiff does not presently seek injunctive reJief. 

35. Superiority: In addition, this suit may be maintained as a class action 

because a class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair and efficient 

adjudication of this controversy, since joinder of all members is impracticable. The 

claims asserted herein are applicable to all consumers throughout the United States who 

purchased Arnyloban. The injury suffered by each individual class member is relatively 

small in comparison to the burden and expense of individual prosecution of the complex 

and extensive litigation necessitated by Defendant's conduct. It would be virtually 

impossible for members of the Class individually effectively and cost-efficiently to 

redress Defendant's wrongful conduct. Individual litigation would enhance delay and 

expense to all parties. The class action device presents far fewer management 

difficulties, and provides the benefits of single adjudication, economy of scale, and 

comprehensive supervision by a single court. 

COUNT I 

36. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the prior allegations of this complaint as if 

fully set forth at length. 

37. Defendant's conduct constitutes an unconscionable commercial practice in 
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violation of the New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act, N.J.S.A. 56:8-2. 

38. As a proximate result of Defendant's conduct, plaintiff and members of 

the class were damaged. 

WHEREFORE, plaintiff, individually and in behalf of the class, demands 

judgment against the Defendant for treble damages together with pre-judgment and 

post-judgment interest, fees, costs, attorney's fees, civil penalties mandated by N.].S.A. 

56:8-19, and any other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

COUNT II 

39. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the prior allegations of this complaint as if 

fully set forth at length. 

40. Defendant's conduct constitutes deception in violation of the New Jersey 

Consumer Fraud Act, N.].S.A. 56:8-2. 

41. As a proximate result of Defendant's conduct, plaintiff and members of 

the class were damaged. 

WHEREFORE, plaintiff, individually and in behalf of the class, demands 

judgment against the Defendant for treble damages together with pre-judgment and 

post-judgment interest, fees, costs, attorney's fees, civil penalties mandated by N./.S.A. 

56:8-19, and any other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper. 
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COUNT III 

42. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the prior allegations of this complaint as if 

fully set forth at length. 

43. Defendant's conduct constitutes fraud in violation of the New Jersey 

Consumer Fraud Act, N.J.S.A. 56:8-2. 

44. As a proximate result of Defendant' s conduct, plaintiff and members of 

the class were damaged. 

WHEREFORE, plaintiff, individually and in behalf of the class, demands 

judgment against the Defendant for treble damages together with pre-judgment and 

post-judgment interest, fees, costs, attorney' s fees, civil penalties mandated by N .f.S.A. 

56:8-19, and any other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

COUNT IV 

45. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the prior allegations of this complaint as if 

fully set forth at length. 

46. Defendant's conduct constitutes false pretense, false promise and/or 

misrepresentation, in violation of the New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act, N.].S.A. 56:8-2. 

47. As a proximate result of Defendant' s conduct, plaintiff and members of 

the class were damaged. 
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WHEREFORE, plaintiff, individually and in behalf of the class, demands 

judgment against the Defendant for treble damages together with pre-judgment and 

post-judgment interest, fees, costs, attorney's fees, civil penalties mandated by N.].S.A. 

56:8-19, and any other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

COUNTV 

48. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the prior allegations of this complaint as if 

fully set forth at length. 

49. Defendant's conduct constitutes knowing concealment, suppression 

and/or omission of material facts with the intent that others, including members of the 

plaintiff-class, rely upon such concealment, suppression and/or omission, in connection 

with the sale or advertisement of any merchandise in violation of the New Jersey 

Consumer Fraud Act, N.f.S.A. 56:8-2. 

50. As a proximate result of Defendant's conduct, plaintiff and m embers of 

the class were damaged. 

WHEREFORE, plaintiff, individually and in behalf of the class, demands 

judgment against the Defendant for treble damages together with pre-judgment and 

post-ju~gment interest, fees, costs, attorney's fees, civil penalties mandated by N.].S.A. 

56:8-19, and any other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper. 
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JURY DEMAND 

Demand is hereby made for trial by jury as to all issues. 

TRIAL COUNSEL DESIGNATION 

Pursuant to Rule 4:25-4, the Court is respectfully advised that Harold M. 

Hoffman, Esq., is hereby designated as trial counsel in behalf of plaintiff. 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 4:5-1 

Harold M. Hoffman, counsel for plaintiff, hereby certifies that the matter in 

controversy is not the subject of any other known pending action in this or any other 

Court or any pending arbitration, nor is any other action or arbitration known to be 

contemplated. At this time, no other known party, other than members of the class, are 

anticipated for joinder. 

I certify that the foregoing is true to the best of my knowledge. I am aware that 

if any of the foregoing is wilfully false, I am subject to punishment. 

HAROLD M. HOFFMAN, ESQ. 

Dated: January 19, 2016 
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Richard D. Kraus, Esq. 
Attorney ID No. 033241983 
One University Plaza, Suite 14 
Hackensack, NJ 07601  
P: (201) 487-2870 
   
Attorney for Defendant 

 
 
 

 
HAROLD M. HOFFMAN, individually and on 
behalf of those similarly situated,  
 
 Plaintiffs, 
 v. 
 
MUSHROOM WISDOM, INC., 
 
 Defendant. 

SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY 
LAW DIVISION BERGEN COUNTY 
 
Docket No. BER-L-608-16 
 
NOTICE OF  FILING NOTICE OF 
REMOVALTO THE UNITED STATES 
DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 
 
 

 
 

TO: Clerk of Court 
 Superior Court of New Jersey 
 Bergen County 
 10 Main Street 
 Hackensack, New Jersey 07601-7699 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Defendant Mushroom Wisdom, Inc. has this day filed a 

Notice of Removal, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, in the above-entitled action 

with the Clerk of the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey, effecting the 

removal of this action from the Superior Court of New Jersey, Law Division, Bergen County. 

 

 
DATED:  February 12, 2016 

       Richard D. Kraus, Esq.  
Attorney for Defendant 
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Richard D. Kraus, Esq. (RK4561) 
SBN 033241983 
rdkraus@earthlink.net 
One University Plaza, Suite 14 
Hackensack, NJ 07601  
P: (201) 487-2870 
F: (201) 343-8517 
   
Attorney for Defendant 

 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

 
 
HAROLD M. HOFFMAN, individually 
and on behalf of those similarly situated,  
 
 Plaintiffs, 
 v. 
 
MUSHROOM WISDOM, INC., 
 
 Defendant. 

Civil Action No.  
Judge:  
 
     Document electronically filed 
 
 
DECLARATION PURSUANT 
TO LOCAL CIVIL RULE 11.2 

 
 
I, Richard D. Kraus, Esq., admitted to the bars of the State of New Jersey 

and this Court, counsel for Defendant Mushroom Wisdom, Inc. in the above-

captioned matter, hereby certify that the matter in controversy is not the subject of 

any other action pending in any court, or of any pending arbitration or 

administrative proceeding. 

I certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 
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DATED:  February 12, 2016 

      Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
 

By:   s/ Richard D. Kraus    
      Richard D. Kraus, Esq. (RK4561) 

SBN 033241983 
rdkraus@earthlink.net 
One University Plaza, Suite 14 

    Hackensack, NJ 07601  
P: (201) 487-2870 

       F: (201) 343-8517 
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Richard D. Kraus, Esq. (RK4561) 
SBN 033241983 
rdkraus@earthlink.net 
One University Plaza, Suite 14 
Hackensack, NJ 07601  
P: (201) 487-2870 
F: (201) 343-8517 
   
Attorney for Defendant 

 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

 
 
HAROLD M. HOFFMAN, individually 
and on behalf of those similarly situated,  
 
 Plaintiffs, 
 v. 
 
MUSHROOM WISDOM, INC., 
 
 Defendant. 

Civil Action No.  
Judge:  
 
     Document electronically filed 
 
 
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 
 
I, Richard D. Kraus, an attorney admitted to practice before this Court, 

certify that on February 12, 2016, I electronically filed the following documents on 

behalf of defendant Mushroom Wisdom, Inc.: 

• Notice of Removal with accompanying exhibits; 

• Corporate Disclosure Statement Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil 

Procedure 7.1; 

• Statement pursuant to Local Civil Rule 11.2; 
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• Civil Cover Sheet; and 

• Certificate of Service 

Service was also made on this date upon the following counsel in 

accordance with the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and the District of New 

Jersey’s Local Rules on Service: 

Harold M. Hoffman 
240 Grand Avenue 
Englewood, NJ 07631 
Hoffman.esq@verizon.net 

 

 
DATED:  February 12, 2016 

      Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
 

By:   s/ Richard D. Kraus    
      Richard D. Kraus, Esq. (RK4561) 

SBN 033241983 
rdkraus@earthlink.net 
One University Plaza, Suite 14 

    Hackensack, NJ 07601  
P: (201) 487-2870 
F: (201) 343-8517 
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